SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILE
SID J WHITE

20 1987

70,680

OLERK, SURREME COURT

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,

Appellant,

vs.

FORTUNE FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION, ETC., et al.,

Appellees.

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

FRANZ ERIC DORN
Appellate Attorney
THOMAS H. BATEMAN, III
General Counsel
Department of Transportation
Haydon Burns Building, MS 58
605 Suwannee Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0458
904/488-6212

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The Appellant, Department of Transportation, will be referred to as the "Appellant" or the "Department".

The Appellee, Fortune Federal Savings and Loan Associations, etc., shall be referred to as the "Appellee" of "Fortune Federal".

Due to the advanced briefing schedule of this Court a record has not been transmitted to date. Accordingly, citations shall be made to the record transmitted to the Second District Court of Appeal.

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

This is a direct appeal from a decision of the Second District Court of Appeal declaring Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes (1985) unconstitutional. The Second District also certified the following question to this Court as being one of great public importance:

WHETHER SECTION 337.27(3), FLORIDA STATUTES (1985), WHICH LIMITS ACQUISITION COSTS IN EMINENT DOMAIN CASES BY ALLOWING THE STATE TO CONDEMN MORE PROPERTY THAN IS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT A VALID PUBLIC PURPOSE CONTRAVENES THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION?

The District Court decision was in response to an appeal from a circuit court order rendered April 2, 1986 denying an order of taking for a "whole take" pursuant to Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes (1985), and granting only a partial taking. (R: 189-190) As the opinion of the Second District Court of Appeal indicated, the facts are not in dispute.

On August 23, 1985, the Florida Department of Transportation filed a Petition in Eminent Domain to acquire Parcel 108. (R: 1-9) Parcel 108 was owned by Fortune Federal Savings and Loan Association. (R: 1-9) The entire tract of land included in the Petition is 1.344 acres in size and is rectangular shaped. Located on this property was a one-story prefabricated building that contained the Fortune Federal Savings and Loan. (T: 1-7) The property is located on U.S. 19 in Tarpon Springs, at the southwest corner of U.S. 19 and Lime Street. (T: 17) The Department needs .508 acres of this land that fronts on U.S. 19 for the purpose of widening U.S. 19 (T: 17) By stipulation of the parties, the .508 acres was acquired by the Department of Transportation by order of taking entered on October 29, 1985. (T: 92; R: 25, 27) At that time there was a pending dispute as to

whether the Department could acquire the remaining .836 acres of the parent tract which consisted of vacant land. (T: 92)

At the hearing on the Order of Taking on October 29, 1985, the Department's appraiser testified that the value of the whole parent tract was \$480,000.00. (T: 21) He further testified that full compensation for the .508 acres was \$225,000.00. (T: 21) This was based on \$155,000.00 value for the land, \$68,000.00 for the improvements and \$2,000.00 for severance damages. (T: 19-21)

The Department then presented the testimony of a certified public accountant who testified on the subject of business damages. He testified that the taking of the .508 acres would destroy the business since it could not survive on the remainder property. (T: 34)

He further testified that the bank was going to claim in excess of \$2 million dollars in business damages. (T: 34) He was also of the opinion that the bank's business damages would exceed the difference between the value of the .508 acres alone and the value of the entire parent tract. (T: 34) In other words the total costs in acquiring the .508 acres alone would exceed the cost of acquiring the entire parent tract. (T: 35)

The Department's right of way administrator then testified. He confirmed that the bank's business damage claim would exceed the total value of the property. (T: 38) He testified that by statute (Section 337.271, Florida Statutes) the Department was required to negotiate business damage claims with the landowner. (T: 38) He further testified that a "whole take" pursuant to Section 337.27 was justified since the "acquisition costs to the department [would] be equal to or less than the cost of acquiring a portion of the property." (T: 39)

There was absolutely nothing in the record that would indicate that the Department intended to use the remaining .836 acres for private purposes or to sell it to private individuals.

The trial court issued Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in its order denying the "whole take" on the basis that business damages were not a part of the "acquisition costs" mentioned in Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes. The trial court in effect ruled that in order for Section 337.27(3) to apply allowing the Department to acquire an entire tract, the direct costs of the land <u>itself</u> for the part taken and severance damages must exceed the value of the whole tract of land. The trial court made this ruling to save the constitutionality of the statute. The trial court in his order suggested <u>in dicta</u> that without this construction the statute would be unconstitutional because it would allow the taking of private property for a private purpose.

In the appellate briefs the primary issue raised was the statutory interpretation question which the Second District Court of Appeal decided in favor of the Department. However, the Department briefed the constitutional question in the interest of judicial economy to avoid a remand to the lower court, an inevitable ruling by the trial court of unconstitutionality of Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes, and another piecemeal appeal of that ruling. The Second District Court ruled against the Department on the constitutional issue, certifying the question for this Court to resolve.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The Second District Court of Appeal clearly erred by declaring Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes (1985) unconstitutional. Section 337.27(3) clearly allows condemnation of excess property based on a public purpose. The Second District erroneously failed to defer to explicit determinations made by the Legislature that Section 337.27(3) served a public purpose. Those purposes are to save the public's money by taking extra property when to do so would be cheaper than the land actually needed for the public improvement and use those savings on other vital transportation projects. The courts have broadly deferred to judicial determinations of public purpose and have not invalidated such a determination unless the Legislature's action is completely arbitrary and capricious, and bears no reasonable relationship to a public purpose. The public purposes specified by the Legislature clearly pass as that very narrow standard of review.

While the standard of review in construing excess condemnation statutes has narrowed, the judicial concept of what constitutes a public purpose has broadened to the full extent of the police power. The scope of the public purpose, as the Second District Court of Appeal held, is no longer limited to taking needed for the direct public improvement project. Rather, this Court, the United States Supreme Court, and courts from other jurisdictions have expanded the public purpose concept to embrace broad economic and social goals.

The precise question in the instant case is one of first impression:

The constitutionality of an excess condemnation statute has never been challenged in <u>Florida</u>. However, statutes such as 337.27(3) have been upheld largely under the financial remnant theory. That theory provides

that a public purpose is served if the excess condemnation will save or avoid the payment of severance or consequential damages that would be equal to or greater than the cost of taking the greater amount of property. In the instant case taking the extra property would save the state almost two million dollars in business damages that would have to be paid in order to pay business damages. Saving the public's money and the promotion of good governmental business decisions are the paramount public purpose under this theory which the Appellant would ask this Court to adopt and uphold the constitutionality of Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes (1985). The certified question of the Second District Court of Appeal should be answered in the negative.

ARGUMENT

THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN DECLARING SECTION 337.27(3), FLORIDA STATUTES, UNCONSTITUTIONAL

A. STANDARD OF REVIEW: THE JUDICIARY
SHOULD DEFER TO LEGISLATIVE
DETERMINATIONS OF WHAT
CONSTITUTES A PUBLIC PURPOSE

The Second District Court of Appeal has specifically declared that Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes (1985) is unconstitutional because the statute purportedly allows the taking of private property without a public purpose. The court specifically certified the question as follows:

WHETHER SECTION 337.27(3), FLORIDA STATUTES (1985), WHICH LIMITS ACQUISITION COSTS IN EMINENT DOMAIN CASES BY ALLOWING THE STATE TO CONDEMN MORE PROPERTY THAN IS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT A VALID PUBLIC PURPOSE, CONTRAVENES THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION?

In its opinon the District Court omitted to consider the very important element that a specific finding was made by the Legislature that the reduction of right of way acquisition cost by total takings would serve a public purpose. The Legislature has made such a specific statement in Section 337.27(3), viz:

(3) In the acquisition of lands and property, the department may acquire an entire lot, block, or tract of land if, by doing so, the acquisition costs to the department will be equal to or less than the cost of acquiring a portion of the property. This subsection shall be construed as a specific recognition by the Legislature that this means of limiting the rising costs to the state of property acquisition is a public purpose and that, without this limitation, the viability of many public projects will be threatened. (emphasis supplied)

The standard of review pertaining to the constitutional challenge of a statute is that the courts should resolve all doubts as to the validity of a statute in favor of constitutional validity. Carter v. Sparkman, 335 So.2d 802, 805 (Fla. 1976). If possible, a statute should be construed in such a manner as would be consistent with the Constitution; that is, in such a way as to remove it from constitutional infirmity. Id. at 805. The presumption of constitutionality of legislation continues until the contrary is proved beyond a reasonable doubt by the challenger. A.B.A. Industries, Inc. v. Pinellas Park, 366 So.2d 761 (Fla. 1979).

This Court has stated that a legislative determination of public purpose "is presumed to be valid and should be upheld unless it is arbitrary and unfounded - unless it is so clearly erroneous as to be beyond the power of the legislature." State v. Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency, 392 So.2d 875, 886 (Fla. 1980). See also State v. Housing Finance

Authority of Polk County, 376 So.2d 1158 (Fla. 1979). The question of what constitutes a public purpose is a question of fact for the Legislature to determine, and this finding should be given great weight. State v. Housing Finance Authority of Polk County, supra; State v. Monroe County, 148 Fla.

111, 3 So.2d 754 (1941); Jackson Lumber Co. v. Walton County, 95 Fla. 632, 116 So. 771 (1928). This finding should not be disturbed unless proved beyond a reasonable doubt by the challenger. Pinellas Park, supra.

The question of what constitutes a public purpose is ultimately a judicial one; however, the standard of review has become increasingly narrow. Wilton v. St. Johns County, 98 Fla. 26, 123 So. 527 (Fla. 1929). This Court enunciated that principle in Wilton and stated:

While the Legislature may, in providing for the condemnation of private property, determine in the first instance whether the use for which it is proposed to allow the condemnation is a public use, and such determination will be accorded great weight by the courts, this legislative determination is not final. It is universally held that whether a particular use is public or not is a judicial question. [citations omitted] But Nichols on Eminent Domain, departing somewhat from the accepted rule, says that the real question for the courts to decide is not whether the proposed use is a public one, "but whether the legislature might reasonably consider it a public one." This is but another way of saying that all reasonable presumptions will be indulged by the courts in favor of the validity and constitutionality of the legislative determination, but the courts must in the end determine the question.

The United States Supreme Court has taken an extremely deferential approach to its review of public purpose determinations made by state courts in eminent domain actions where these issues were raised under the 14th Amendment. See Rindye Co. v. County of Los Angeles, 262 U.S. 700, 43 S.Ct. 689, 67 L.Ed 1186 (1923). In fact the Court noted that it has not invalidated a state eminent domain action for this reason in the 20th century. United States ex rel. Tennessee Valley Authority v. Welch, 327 U.S. 547, 66 S.Ct. 715, 90 L.Ed. 843 (1946).

The United Supreme Court has adopted a similarly deferential approach toward federal exercises of eminent domain. <u>United States ex rel.</u>

<u>Tennessee Valley Authority v. Welch, supra, was a 1946 decision upholding the T.V.A.'s condemnation of property near a dam but not actually necessary for the construction of the dam itself. Justice Black wrote for the majority:</u>

We think that it is the function of Congress to decide what type of taking is for a public use and that the agency authorized to do the taking may do so to the full extent of its statutory authority. Any departure from this judicial restraint would result in courts deciding on what is and is not a governmental function and in their invalidating legislation on the basis of their view on that question at the moment of decision, a practice which has proved impracticable in other fields.

Id. at 551-552.

The scope of judicial review was narrowed even further in Berman v.
Parker, 348 U.S. 26, 75 S.Ct 98, 99 L.Ed 27 (1954) where the court upheld a congressional act authorizing the use of eminent domain power to accomplish slum clearance and urban renewal. After the power of eminent domain had been exercised, the Act authorized reconveyance of the property from the condemning authority to private entities to effectuate redevelopment of the property. Justice Douglas wrote that "enlisting private enterprise for urban renewal is but one means of effecting the public purpose" and those means "are for Congress and Congress alone to determine". Id. at 32.

In similarly sweeping terms, Justice Douglas declared the limits of judicial review:

Subject to specific constitutional limitations, when the legislature has spoken, the public interest has been declared in terms well-nigh conclusive. In such cases the legislature, not the judiciary, is the main guardian of the public needs to be served by social legislation. . This principle admits of no exception merely because the power of eminent domain is involved. The role of the judiciary in determining whether that power is being exercised for a public purpose is an extremely narrow one.

Id. at 32.

The standard of review announced in <u>Berman</u> is remarkably similar to the narrow standard of review announced in Florida cases cited supra. In

fact <u>Berman</u> has been very influential in shaping the standard of review in State constitutional decisions, viz:

`. '. ` '.

Although <u>Berman</u> is not binding on state courts interpreting their own constitutions, it has nevertheless been widely cited. The decision defines the substantive limits of the fifth amendment's public use clause, which is virtually identical to many state constitutional provisions. Also, because the <u>Berman</u> Court was sitting as the District of Columbia's highest court, the decision prescribes a relationship between court and legislature that state courts may consider persuasive.

Note, "Public Use, Private Use, and Judicial Review in Eminent Domain", New York University Law Review, Volume 58, p. 409 (1983).

The standard of review was narrowed once again in Hawaii: Housing
Authority v. Midkiff, 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 81 L.Ed.2d 186 (1984).

This case involved the constitutionality of the Hawaii Land Reform Act.

This act sought to use the eminent domain power of the State of Hawaii to condemn lands of a few large landholders and then redistribute the lands to other private individuals through resale. The Hawaii Legislature made several findings that this pattern of ownership was artificially inflating the value of the land on the islands and causing other kinds of economic harm to the public. The legislature also made several corresponding findings that the redistribution scheme would serve a public purpose.

The <u>Midkiff</u> Court once again upheld the constitutionally of social and economic legislation and repeated the rule in <u>Berman</u> regarding judicial deference to legislative findings of public purpose and repeated that the standard is "an extremely narrow one." Id at 2329.

What is especially significant about <u>Midkiff</u> was the court's responses to arguments that the redistribution scheme probably would not work or would not obtain the social or economic goals desired. The court stated that "deference to the legislature's public use determination is required until it is shown to involve an impossibility." <u>Id</u>. The Court stated that it would not substitute its judgment as to what constitutes a public use "unless the use be palpably without reasonable foundation." <u>Id</u>. The Court further noted:

Of course, this Act, like any other, may not be successful in achieving its intended goals. But "whether in fact the provision will accomplish its objectives is not the question: The [constitutional requirement] is satisfied if . . . the . . . [state] Legislature rationally could have believed that the [Act] would promote its objective." Western & Southern Life Ins. Co. v. State Bd. of Equalization, 451 U.S. 648, 671-672, 101 S.Ct. 2070, 2084-2085, 68 L.Ed.2d 514 (1981); see also Minnesota v. Clover <u>Leaf Creamery Co.</u>, 449 U.S. 456, 466, 101 S.Ct. 715, 725, 66 L.Ed.2d 659 (1981); Vance v. Bradley, 440 U.S. 93, 112, 99 S.Ct. 939, 950, 59 L.Ed.2d 171 (1979). When the legislature's purpose is legitimate and its means are not irrational, our cases make clear that empirical debates over the wisdom of takings -- no less than debates over the wisdom of other kinds of socioeconomic legislation--are not to be carried out in the federal courts.

Id. at 2230.

* ' '

Moreover, statutes are presumptively valid and constitutional and may not be struck down by a court merely because the court disagrees with the legislature. The judiciary may not hold laws invalid simply because they are inconsistent with their individual social or economic theories or with what they deem to be sound public policy. CBS, Inc. v. Federal

Communications Comm., 453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981)

cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 213 (1981). For the court to rule a statute invalid, such statute must violate organic law.

Biscayne Kennel Club, Inc. v. Florida State Racing Comm., 165 So.2d 762 (Fla. 1964).

In the instant case, the Legislature in the text of Section 337.27(3), Florida Statutes, has clearly made two findings of public purpose:

- 1. To limit the rising costs to the state of property acquisition.
- That without the above-limitation the viability of many public projects will be threatened.

The District Court actually did not even analyze the sufficiency of the legislative findings let alone defer to them. Rather, the court used the wrong standard of review and relied on the rule that "a condemning authority cannot take more lands or a greater interest therein than necessary to serve the particular public use for which it is being acquired;" citing to State Department of Natural Resources v. Hudson Pulp & Paper Corp., 363 So.2d 822 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978); Canal Authority v.

Miller, 243 So.2d 131 (Fla. 1970); Dade County v. Paxson, 270 So.2d 455 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1972) cert. denied 283 So.2d 862.

The Legislature had made no determination in any of those cases that the excess condemnation made by the state would serve a public purpose.

Also, there was no showing by the government in any of those cases that the

excess property in those cases would be cheaper than simply condemning a smaller piece of the property. On the other hand, in the instant case the evidence clearly showed that the taking of the entire property would save the state almost two million dollars beyond what a partial taking would cost.

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