AUG 81 1937 C

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,

Appellate,

CLEEN, SUL VENAL COURT By______ PEASEPANO. 70,680

vs.

FORTUNE FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION, ETC., et al.,

Appellees.

and the second second

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE FORTUNE FEDERAL SAVINGS AND LOAN ASSOCIATION

> CHARLES M. PHILLIPS, JR., ESQ. 611 Druid Road East, Suite 107 Clearwater, Florida 34616 (813) 461-9551 Attorney for Appellees

> > 5 5.8 5B

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

In its Brief the Appellant divides argument into three categories as follows:

A. Standard of Review (Page 6);

B. Public Purpose (Page 15);

C. Excess Condemnation (Page 24).

Appellant's Table of Citations lists 49 reported cases, 25 of those cases are not eminent domain cases and, hence, do not stand for the propositions for which they are cited by the Appellant, for the reason that the standard of review is different from the standard employed by the courts in eminent domain cases, and the public purposes of those cases involve social and commercial considerations foreign to the law of eminent domain.^{1.}

The subject matter of those 25 cases includes licensing harness racing, taxation, medical mediation, annexation, land reform, slum clearance, urban blight and urban renewal, validation of revenue bonds, stimulation of industry, assessment for road improvements, equal time for political publication, turpentine distilling, breach of construction contracts, municipal debt, removal of telephone lines, and environmental considerations.

Since the taking of private property by eminent domain is a harsh remedy, the standard of review of legislative action is far more strict then it is in the subjects set forth in the preceding paragraph.

Footnote 1. next page

-5-

Armstrong v. Detroit 286 Mich. 277, 282 N.W. 147 (1938) 32 Berman v. Parker 348 U.S. 26, 75 S.Ct. 98, 99 L.Ed. 27 (1954) 9,10,20 Biscayne Kennel Club, Inc. v. Florida State Racing Comm. 12 12 165 So.2d 762 (Fla. 1964) cert. denied 429 U.S. 1041, 97 S.Ct. 740, 50 L.Ed.2d 753 (1977) 9,10,20 Brown v. United States 263 U.S. 78, 81, 44 S.Ct. 92, 101, 68 L.Ed 171, 180 (1923) 31 Carter v. Sparkman 335 So.2d 802 (Fla. 1976) 7 CBS, Inc. v. Federal Communications Comm. 4453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981) cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 213 (1981) 12 City of Jacksonville v. Glidden Co. 124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) 16 Emmons v. Detroit 125 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) 31 Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) 15 Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 186 (1984) 10,11,20 Hillsborough County v. Bregenzer 16 16
348 U.S. 26, 75 S.Ct. 98, 99 L.Ed. 27 (1954) Biscayne Kennel Club, Inc. v. Florida State Racing Comm. 12 165 So.2d 762 (Fla. 1964) cert. denied 429 U.S. 1041, 97 S.Ct. 740, 50 L.Ed.2d 753 (1977) Brown v. United States 31 263 U.S. 78, 81, 44 S.Ct. 92, 101, 68 L.Ed 171, 180 (1923) Carter v. Sparkman 7 335 So.2d 802 (Fla. 1976) CBS, Inc. v. Federal Communications Comm. 453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981) cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 213 (1981) City of Jacksonville v. Glidden Co. 16 124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) Emmons v. Detroit 31 255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d
Biscayne Kennel Club, Inc. v. Florida State Racing Comm. 12 165 So.2d 762 (Fla. 1964) cert. denied 429 U.S. 1041, 97 S.Ct. 740, 50 L.Ed.2d 753 (1977) Prown v. United States 31 263 U.S. 78, 81, 44 S.Ct. 92, 101, 68 L.Ed 171, 180 (1923) 7 Carter v. Sparkman 7 335 So.2d 802 (Fla. 1976) 12 CBS, Inc. v. Federal Communications Comm. 12 453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981) 12 cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 213 (1981) 16 City of Jacksonville v. Glidden Co. 16 16 124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) 15 Emmons v. Detroit 31 255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) 15 Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) 15 Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 10,11,20
263 U.S. 78, 81, 44 S.Ct. 92, 101, 68 L.Ed 171, 180 (1923) Carter v. Sparkman 7 335 So.2d 802 (Fla. 1976) 12 CBS, Inc. v. Federal Communications Comm. 12 453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981) 12 cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 12 213 (1981) City of Jacksonville v. Glidden Co. 16 124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) 16 Fmmons v. Detroit 31 255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) 15 Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) 15 Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 10,11,20
335 So.2d 802 (Fla. 1976) 12 CBS, Inc. v. Federal Communications Comm. 12 453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981) 12 cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 12 213 (1981) 16 City of Jacksonville v. Glidden Co. 16 124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) 16 Emmons v. Detroit 31 255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) 15 Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) 15 Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 10,11,20
453 U.S. 367, 101 S.Ct. 2813, 69 L.Ed.2d 706 (1981) cert. denied 449 U.S. 950, 101 S.Ct. 353, 66 L.Ed.2d 213 (1981) City of Jacksonville v. Glidden Co. 16 124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) Emmons v. Detroit 31 255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 186 (1984)
124 Fla. 690, 169 So. 215 (Fla. 1936) Emmons v. Detroit 31 255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 186 (1984)
255 Mich. 558, 238 N.W. 188 (1931) Grubstein v. Urban Renewal Agency 15 115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959) 15 Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff 10,11,20 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 186 (1984)
115 So.2d 745 (Fla. 1959)Hawaii Housing Authority v. Midkiff467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d186 (1984)
467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321, 80 L.Ed.2d 186 (1984)
Hillsborough County V. Bregenzer 16
151 Fla. 747, 10 So.2d 498 (Fla. 1942)
Jackson Lumber Co. v. Walton County 7 95 Fla. 632, 116 So. 771 (1928)
<u>New Products Corp. v. Ziegler</u> 32 352 Mich. 73, 88 N.W.2d 528 (1958)
Northern Investment Corp. v. City of Cocoa 21 158 So. 889 (1935)
Southern Bell Telephone and Telegraph v. State 18 75 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1954)
State v. Hosing Finance Authority of Polk County 7,14,15 376 So.2d 1158 (Fla. 1979)
<u>State v. Monroe County</u> 7,19 148 Fla. 111, 3 So.2d 754 (1941)
State v. Miami Beach Redevelopment Agency 7,15,21 392 So.2d 875 (Fla. 1980)
State v. Washington County Development Authority 14 178 So.2d 573 (Fla. 1965) -5A-

State Department of Natural Resources	
v. Hudson Pulp & Paper Corp.	13
363 So.2d 811 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978)	
Tracey v. Preston	31
172 Ohio St. 567, 178 N.E.2d 923 (Sup.Ct. 1962)	
United States v. Bowman	25
367 F.2d 768 (7th Cir. 1966)	
United States v. Certain Real Estate Lying	
on the South Side of Board Street	31
217 F.2d 920 (6th Cir. 1954)	

Accordingly, in order to preserve the context of this Answer Brief and to efficiently invite the Court's attention only to precedents which contribute to the Court's consideration and conclusion, this Brief will analyze only those cases which are pertinent to propositions that are admitted by both parties to this cause.

The Department concedes that the question of what constitutes a "public purpose" is ultimately a judicial question [Initial Brief at 7]. Florida courts have repeatedly recognized the importance of this determination, since the "public purpose" requirement, together with that of "full compensation" constitute the only limitations on "one of the most harsh proceedings known to the law." <u>Baycol, Inc. v. Downtown Development</u> <u>Authority</u>, 315 So.2d 451, 455 (Fla. 1975). Florida courts have further recognized that arbitrary and capricious legislative action is always subject to review.

The purpose of Article X, §6 of the Florida Constitution is to bar Government from forcing some people alone to bear public burdens which, in all fairness and justice, should be borne by the public as a whole. Section 337.27(3), Fla. Stats. (1985) is in direct contravention of this purpose - it authorizes the government to shift the "cost" of the taking back onto the private property owner. "Cost" provides the entire justification for the taking of property the <u>Department</u> determines is "excess", without resort to any other factors.

If accepted herein, the Department's position is virtually limitless. It authorizes the taking of vast tracts of land

-6-

simply to avoid the payment of compensation a comdemning authority deems to be excessive.

A summary of all theories presented, either direct or implied, to justify excess condemnation in all of the cases, texts and treatises available throughout the country are as follows:

1. Recoupment

(A) Direct
(B) Vicarious

2. Remnant

- (A) Property
- (B) Financial
- 3. Protection
- 4. Accessory Use

All of the foregoing, except vicarious recoupment and financial remnant, have been eliminated by the final and firm position taken by the Appellant. Direct recoupment is the taking of excess property for the purpose of resale in order to fund the public project to be constructed. Vicarious recoupment is the taking of excess land to produce funds by savings, or otherwise, in order to divert funds to the public entity, which funds are not to be used for the public project being construed. The financial remnant theory is that the land remaining after the taking, although not so small in size as to constitute a property remnant, is so small in value as to be essentially worthless.

Taking for land reform or for urban redevelopment or encouragement of industry have all involved the taking of an

-7-

entire tract, hence do not have a place in the discussion of taking of excess property in conjunction with taking of a primary tract. The official position of the Appellant remains that Tract 2 is necessary for the construction, reconstruction or maintenance of the public project to be constructed. The Appellant has never resolved, declared or petitioned otherwise. Either the Appellant instituted these proceedings in bad faith, or in the alternative, counsel for the Appellant was without authority to proceed with an entirely contradictory approach at the Order of Taking hearing.

The ultimate decision on the subjects of necessity and propriety of taking lies squarely with the Courts of Florida and the nation.

The overwhelming weight of authority is contrary to exercising, and excess taking for the purpose of, direct recoupment, and a taking for vicarious recoupment has never been sanctioned.

No Court has yet approved the taking of a financial remnant in any circumstance related in any manner to the factual position and characteristics of Tract 2, the subject of this litigation.

Entitlement to business damages under Section 73.071 F.S. is a matter of statutory integrity, not subject to <u>executive</u> grace.

-8-

ARGUMENT

WHETHER SECTION 337.27(3), FLORIDA STATUTES (1985), WHICH LIMITS ACQUISITION COSTS IN EMINENT DOMAIN CASES BY ALLOWING THE STATE TO CONDEMN MORE PROPERTY THAN IS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT A VALID PUBLIC PURPOSE, CONTRA-VENES THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION?

or rephrased:

WHETHER THE COST OF CONDEMNATION IN AND OF ITSELF CONSTITUTES A "PUBLIC PURPOSE" UNDER ARTICLE X, §6, FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, WHERE THE CONDEMNOR ADMITS THAT IT HAS NO NEED FOR THE PROPERTY TAKEN OR PURPOSE FOR THE TAKING OTHER THAN TO REDUCE THE COST OF ACQUISITION.

A. STANDARD OF REVIEW

As early as 1803 our Courts recognized that popular legislative action was not necessarily constitutional action, and left it up to the Courts to decide. <u>Marbury v. Madison</u>, 1 Cranch 137, 2L.3d. 60 (1803).

Thus, in the <u>United States ex rel Tennessee Valley Authority</u> <u>v. Welch</u>, 327 U.S. 547, 557, 66 S.Ct. 715, 90 L.Ed. 843 (1946), Justice Frankfurter wrote a separate concurrence to point out that:

> "The Bill of Rights provides that private property shall not "be taken for public use without just compensation..." This Court has never deviated from the view that under the Constitution a claim that a taking is not "for public use" is open for judicial consideration, ultimately by this Court. All the cases cited in the Court's opinion sustaining a taking recognize and accept the power of judicial review. <u>I assume in</u> <u>citing these cases the Court again recog-</u> <u>nizes the doctrine that whether a taking is</u> for a public purpose is not a question beyond judicial competence. (emphasis added).

In order to focus upon the standard of review which applies to excess condemnation, which is the subject matter of the case in the lower court and this appeal, we must first excise cases in two other categories of subject matter, in which the standard of judicial review of legislative action is different, for good reasons.

First, the Court's have been less likely to disturb the legislative action based upon the police power in order to accomplish broad social purposes, such as land reform in <u>Hawaii</u> <u>Housing Authority v. Midkiff</u>, 467 U.S. 229, 104 S.Ct. 2321 (1984), and eradication of slum blight by urban renewal in the plethora of cases cited in Appellant's brief.

Second, the administrative selection of the site, location or route of a public facility is seldom disturbed, as in <u>Catholic</u> <u>Burse Endowment Fund, Inc. v. State Road Department</u>, 180 So.2d 513 (2DCA 1965).

In <u>State of Delaware v. 9.88 Acres of Land</u>, 253 A.2d 509 (S.Ct. Delaware 1969) the statute authorized excess taking, but "only if the portion --- is landlocked --- and the parcel remaining is of little value to the owner", accurately describing the remnant theory of the DOT herein. The Highway Department attempted to take an excess parcel that admittedly was not needed , and was taken only for an economic reason. The Supreme Court of Delaware declared the taking to be unconstitutional.

Under the law in this state, the condemning authority has always had the burden of proving "necessity" for the taking; this is and has been ultimately a judicial question to be decided

-10-

in a court of competent jurisdiction. <u>Canal Authority v. Miller</u>, 243 So.2d 131, 133 (Fla. 1970); <u>State v. Jacksonville Expressway</u> <u>Authority</u>, 139 So.2d 135 (Fla. 1962); <u>Wilton v. St. Johns County</u>, 98 Fla. 26, 123 So.527 (1929); <u>Spafford v. Brevard County</u>, 92 Fla. 617, 110 So.451 (Fla. 1926). Indeed, the DOT concedes this at page 7 of its brief. The purpose of such judicial review is to ensure the property rights of the citizens of the state against abuse of the condemning authority's power. <u>Canal</u> Authority v. Miller, 243 So.2d at 133.

In no area is judicial review more necessary than in the area of "excess" condemnation. As one of the primary law review articles cited by the DOT points out:

> "Abandoning review of excess condemnation is even more serious than a lack of review in traditional condemnation proceedings. With eminent domain, one is assured at least that the property taken will be put to a public use. Since excess condemnation is supplemental to the original taking, there is greater danger that the power to take the excess will be abused. The excess need only reasonably promote the purpose of the original condemnation in order to be permitted. Eminent domain is limited to the land needed to provide for the improvement. Excess condemnation is not so limited. Great amounts of land potentially could be taken as an excess. Thus, stricter review of excess condemnation is essential to guard against abuse and to protect the constitutional rights of private property owners. (emphasis added).

Note, 48 Tenn. L.Rev. 30, 398-399 (1981). Moreover, the concluding sentence of the DOT's quote from Note, 15 Env. L.Rptr. 565, 590 (1985) at pages 19-20 of its brief is somehow omitted.

-11-

In noting the expansion of the "public use" concept, the author concludes (in line with preceding authorities cited by the DOT) that "the implication of this broad notion of public use are extremely unsettling." Id. at 590.

Entitlement to business damages under Section 73.071 F.S. is a matter of statutory integrity, not subject to <u>executive</u> grace.

An early Florida case, <u>Peavy-Wilson Lumber Co., Inc., et</u> <u>al. v. Brevard County</u>, 31 S.2d 483 (S.C. 1947), establishes the stationary backdrop against which every innovation must be put before the light for flaws. <u>Peavy-Wilson, Supra</u> remains the law in stating that:

> "The power of eminent domain is an attribute of the sovereign, it is not a vesture of the State conferred by constitution and statute in order that cherished rights of the individual may be safeguarded. It is one of the most harsh proceedings known to the law, consequently when the sovereign delegates the power to a political unit or agency a strict construction will be given against the agency asserting the power".

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